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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: We're going to

          3  call this meeting to order.

          4                 This is the Land Use Committee

          5  Subcommittee on Landmark -- I'm sorry -- on

          6  Planning, Dispositions and Concessions.  The date of

          7  the meeting is January 23rd, and I'd like to

          8  recognize the members of the City Council who are

          9  present today.

         10                 We have Council Member Yvette Clarke,

         11  Council Member Inez Dickens. My name is Council

         12  Member Dan Garodnick. I am the Chair of this

         13  Subcommittee, and this is my first hearing. I will

         14  ask your indulgence for any roughness around the

         15  edges.

         16                 Oh, I'm sorry, Council Member Lanza

         17  is also here from Staten Island.

         18                 I wanted to make one quick note. I

         19  expect to start these meetings promptly at their

         20  called-upon time, and I'd like to ask my colleagues

         21  to cooperate with that. This is a Committee which

         22  has great opportunity for the creation of affordable

         23  housing, and I intend to call hearings on the

         24  subject to perform oversight within the jurisdiction

         25  of this Committee on applications and programs that
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          2  are supported by UDAAPs, which are some of the items

          3  that we're going to be considering today, as well as

          4  concessions. And of course, as always, I will

          5  welcome the suggestions of the members of this

          6  Committee, as well as the members of the City

          7  Council in general, and members of the public for

          8  other opportunities for oversight in this Committee.

          9                 I'd like to open this hearing on

         10  Preconsidered non-ULURP No. 20065066 HAM, which is a

         11  property at 484 West 165th Street in the district of

         12  Council Member Robert Jackson of Manhattan, and I'd

         13  like to invite Carol Clark, the Assistant

         14  Commissioner of HPD, to come up and give us a brief

         15  introduction on this property.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         17  you, Mr. Chairman. I'm Carol Clark. I'm Assistant

         18  Commissioner at HPD.

         19                 This property is in the district of

         20  Council Member Jackson. It's been in the public

         21  review process since September of last fall. There's

         22  been extensive back and forth. It's ten dwelling

         23  units. The all ten apartment dwelling unit

         24  representatives are in favor of this project.

         25  Rehabilitation is underway, and it will be completed
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          2  next May. The tenants have been temporarily

          3  relocated, and they have urged Council Member

          4  Jackson to approve the project and he has indicated

          5  his approval.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Are there

          7  questions from members of the Committee about this

          8  particular item?

          9                 I will ask, you said that this

         10  project has been underway for a period, how did you

         11  go through the process of relocating the tenants

         12  during the rehabilitation?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: The

         14  tenants were relocated to other HPD buildings where

         15  there were other vacancies to accommodate them while

         16  the gut rehab was underway.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the time

         18  frame for all of this?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's

         20  approximately ten months.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And then they

         22  will move back into the property?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         24  correct. And the property will have been brought up

         25  to code, and the violations will have been corrected
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          2  and it will be sparkling new units.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          4                 Council Member Dickens.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And this is a

          6  TIL unit, TIL building?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes.

          8  This is the Tenant Interim Lease Program. That's

          9  correct.

         10                 This is where HPD assistant trains

         11  the tenant association in occupied City-owned

         12  buildings that have three or more dwelling units,

         13  and the individual tenants purchased shares for

         14  their apartments were $250. But after the rehab is

         15  completed, they have to fulfill program guidelines

         16  in these TIL buildings.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And all ten

         18  of the families are in agreement in participating in

         19  this, as is Council Member Jackson; did I hear

         20  correct?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         22  correct, Council Member Dickens. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Any other

         24  questions?

         25                 Okay, we are now going to close the
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          2  hearing on preconsidered non-ULURP No. 20065066 HAM,

          3  and open the hearing on preconsidered non-ULURP No.

          4  20065099 HAK, at the address 2962 Fulton Street in

          5  Brooklyn, in the Council District of Council Member

          6  Erik Martin Dilan.

          7                 Ms. Clark, I again ask you to give a

          8  brief introduction to this property.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Sure.

         10  This property is in HPD's Asset Sales Program. And

         11  Asset Sales involve buildings that do not require

         12  subsidy for rehabilitation or operation and they are

         13  sold at market value.

         14                 Tenants in good standing are given

         15  first opportunity to purchase the building, but if

         16  they do not choose to do so, a request for

         17  qualification is issued to the general public, and

         18  HPD reviews the responses and selects a purchaser,

         19  based not only on purchased price, but also on

         20  record that the proposed purchaser has in terms of

         21  rehabilitation and management of real property, that

         22  kind of experience.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         24                 Are there questions?

         25                 Yes, Council Member Dickens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: This was sold

          3  at market value; how does this affect the tenants,

          4  the existing tenancy, if there are existing tenants?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: As a

          6  matter of fact, in this building there are two

          7  vacant residential units, and three vacant

          8  commercial units. So, it's a vacant building. It

          9  doesn't affect existing tenants, there are none.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: How long has

         11  that building been vacant? Just approximately. Has

         12  it been for years? Has it been --

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'm

         14  afraid I really do not know. I can get back to you

         15  with that information.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Council Member

         17  Clarke.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,

         19  Council member.

         20                 Have you had an opportunity to speak

         21  with Councilman Dilan? And could you give us an

         22  indication of how he feels about the property in the

         23  sale?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

         25  Absolutely, Council Member Clarke.
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          2                 We did brief Council Member Dilan and

          3  talked to him about the particular purchaser who is

          4  proposed here. It's a gentleman who successfully

          5  completed other Assets Sales Projects within the

          6  last couple of years, and I believe that the Council

          7  Member actually reached out and talked directly with

          8  the developer before he indicated his approval of

          9  this project with Council staff.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Seeing, no

         11  members of the public wishing to testify on this

         12  one, I should note that there were no members of the

         13  public wishing to testify on the last item, I will

         14  give my colleagues any additional opportunity to ask

         15  questions? And now I'm going to close the item,

         16  preconsidered non-ULURP 20065099 HAK, and open the

         17  hearing on preconsidered non-ULURP 20065100 HAK, at

         18  the address 140 Sunnyside Avenue in Brooklyn. Also

         19  in the district of Council Member Erik Martin Dilan.

         20                 Ms. Clarke.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Again,

         22  Council Member Dilan was briefed on this item and

         23  did talk to the prospective purchasers. Again, this

         24  is a project in the Asset Sales Program. In this

         25  case it's a vacant one-family building with a garage
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          2  attached, and what's anticipated is that the

          3  purchaser will be an owner occupant of the building

          4  after it is renovated and the violations are

          5  corrected.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Seeing no

          7  members of the public wishing to testify on this

          8  item, or any of my colleagues with questions, I will

          9  close the hearing on preconsidered non-ULURP

         10  20065100 HAK, and open the hearing on preconsidered

         11  20065116 HAK at the address 38 Martense Street in

         12  Brooklyn in the district of our own Council Member

         13  Clarke.

         14                 Ms. Clark from HPD.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Well,

         16  yes, that's correct it's in Council Member Yvette

         17  Clarke's district. It has two occupied and four

         18  vacant units. It's proposed through the Assets Sales

         19  Program, being sold as an investment property, and a

         20  total renovation of the building will be undertaken

         21  and the vacant apartments will be rented out.

         22                 And we did have the dialogue with the

         23  Council Member about this property.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Seeing no

         25  members of the public wishing to testify in favor or
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          2  against, we will close the hearing on preconsidered

          3  non-ULURP 20065116 HAK, and open on the hearing on

          4  preconsidered non-ULURP 20065117 HAK, located at 72,

          5  74 Lott Street in Brooklyn, again the district of

          6  Council Member Yvette Clarke.

          7                 Ms. Clark from HPD.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          9  this building is also in the Asset Sales Program. It

         10  has five occupied and one vacant units. It's being

         11  proposed to be purchased as an investment property,

         12  and the purchasers are going to completely renovate

         13  the building, the Building Code, which includes

         14  removing the existing violations, performing a

         15  complete electrical and plumbing upgrade.

         16                 And we did speak with Council Member

         17  Clarke about the project and her approval was

         18  transmitted to the Land Use staff.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         20                 Seeing no members of the public

         21  seeking to testify in favor or against this

         22  property, this item, I will close the hearing on

         23  preconsidered non-ULURP 20065117 HAK, and open the

         24  hearing on preconsidered non-ULURP 20065143 HAK at

         25  the address 572 Pacific Street in Brooklyn in the
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          2  district of Council Member David Yassky.

          3                 Ms. Clark.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          5  this project also is an Asset Sales, it has 11

          6  dwelling units. What's anticipated is a full gut

          7  renovation of the building and a conversion to a

          8  condominium.

          9                 We would note that this is on the

         10  calendar for the first time and Council Member

         11  Yassky has heard an urge for approval of the project

         12  from the Block Association and has called in

         13  approval to the Council staff.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Ms. Clark,

         15  this is a more generic question with regard to all

         16  of these properties, how do you identify these

         17  properties for consideration in UDAAP mechanism, how

         18  exactly do these come to your attention?

         19                 Is there a general process or

         20  procedure, or is it more of an ad hoc mechanism?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: There's

         22  a pipeline at HPD where we're endeavoring over a

         23  ten-year period, according to the Mayor's Housing

         24  Plan, to create 160,000 units of affordable housing

         25  in the City. And while some of the properties that
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          2  are going to become those 165,000 units are already

          3  in the City's ownership, like these in the Asset

          4  Sales Program, others will be gained in other ways.

          5                 Each year there is a cycle of Asset

          6  Sales that comes up, and we bring them to the

          7  Council. We're working down the inventory. At one

          8  time HPD had well over 100,000 parcels in its

          9  inventory, and currently there is less than 3,000

         10  parcels in HPD's inventory. So, we're working down

         11  the list.

         12                 Does that answer your question?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARDONICK: I think it

         14  does.

         15                 So, the Mayor is endeavoring, of

         16  course, to create 160,000 new units. Some of these,

         17  are these considered part of the tally when we are

         18  including these new UDAAP properties as we are doing

         19  today, and as presumably the Land Use Committee and

         20  the whole may go ahead and do; is that included in

         21  that number?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARODNICK:

         23  Yes, sir, it is. It's part of that overall number.

         24  There are rezonings and other efforts that are

         25  undertaken to create the land for affordable housing
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          2  for new construction but these certainly qualify

          3  among the properties that get rehabilitated that

          4  were in City ownership.

          5                 And often they were taken for

          6  non-payment of taxes in the beginning and they've

          7  been in the City inventory for some time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Council Member

          9  Dickens.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Yes. Ms.

         11  Clark, when we talk about, for instance, in a

         12  conversion to a condo, when we talk about

         13  affordability, what exactly are we talking about?

         14  Because there's affordability and then there's

         15  affordability.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: As you

         17  know, we've had some dialogue this morning on that

         18  very point, and the federal government defines

         19  affordable housing as approximately for a family of

         20  four, a family earning approximately $65,000 is at

         21  the area median income. And I know that Council

         22  members and others have different opinions about

         23  affordability, but that's the standard that we're

         24  guided by in this forum.

         25                 Gail, did you want to add something
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          2  to that?

          3                 MS. BENJAMIN: Yes, if I may.

          4                 Gail Benjamin speaking. There are a

          5  variety of different programs that HPD has that

          6  apply to different income groups within the

          7  affordability spectrum, and we have new programs and

          8  new construction. You will, in fact, see a range,

          9  whether it's middle, moderate, or low-income. There

         10  are some programs that HPD or the City in general

         11  have, which is the 80/20 program. That is

         12  specifically geared towards low low-income persons.

         13                 There are other programs such as

         14  Partnership that are geared more towards moderate

         15  and middle income. So, each program has a variety of

         16  guidelines, some of which may involve the income

         17  group that is going to occupy.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Any other

         19  questions?

         20                 Seeing no members of the public

         21  seeking to testify in favor or against, I will close

         22  the hearing on preconsidered non-ULURP number

         23  20065143 HAK, and open the hearing on preconsidered

         24  20065145 HAK located at 425 Barbey Street in

         25  Brooklyn. That's B-a-r-b-e-y. In the Council
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          2  district of Erik Martin Dilan. Council Member Dilan.

          3                 Ms. Clark.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          5  this is actually a proposed project in the

          6  Neighborhood Homes Program which is basically home

          7  ownership-driven. The goal of the Neighborhood Homes

          8  Program is to keep sales to perspective buyers

          9  affordable. HPD contributes subsidy of approximately

         10  $50,000 a unit to keep the prices affordable, and

         11  the existing tenants in good standing who cannot

         12  purchase property, are offered to be relocated to

         13  affordable rental housing.

         14                 And the homes are marketed to

         15  residents between 80 and 120 percent of area median

         16  income, which is approximately 55 to 82,000 for a

         17  family of four.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Ms. Clark, how

         19  many units did you say were affected in this

         20  property?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's

         22  one vacant unit, three units in one vacant building.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And you've

         24  spoken to Council Member Dilan on the subject of

         25  this property as well, and received his consent?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          3  that's correct. The developer in this case, Manny,

          4  which is Acorn, has reached out and briefed him as

          5  well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Seeing no

          7  members of the public wishing to testify on this

          8  matter, in favor or against, I will close the

          9  hearing on preconsidered non-ULURP 20065145 HAK, and

         10  we're going to couple all of those items that were

         11  heard today, and we're going to couple those

         12  together. All other items on the calendar will be

         13  laid over at the request of the various members in

         14  whose district those properties sit, and I recommend

         15  to my colleagues an aye vote on all the items

         16  coupled together, and I will ask the counsel to call

         17  the roll.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair

         19  Garodnick.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Clarke.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Dickens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          4  Lanza.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          7  four in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

          8  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

          9  approved and referred to the full Committee.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         11                 This meeting is adjourned.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 1:50 p.m.)
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